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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, et al. CIVIL ACTION 

v. FILED 
CLICK4SUPPORT, LLC, et al. NO. 15-5777 2017 

STIPULATED ORDER FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION 
AND MONETARY JUDGMENT AS TO DEFENDANT NIRAJ PATEL 

Plaintiffs the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), the State of Connecticut, Offic 

Attorney General, and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of Attorney General 

(collectively, "Plaintiffs"), filed their Complaint, subsequently amended as Amended Complaint 

for Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief(" Amended Complaint"), pursuant to Sections 

13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b, the 

Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act ("Telemarketing Act"), 15 U.S.C. 

§§ 6101-6108, Section 42-1 lOa, et seq. of the Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act ("CUTPA"), 

and Section 201-4 of the Complaint charges that Defendant Niraj 

Patel participated in deceptive acts 

or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45, the FTC's Telemarketing 
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Sales Rule ("TSR"), 16 C.F.R. Part 310, CUTPA, Conn. Gen. Stat.§ 42-1 lOb(a), and Pa UTPCPL, 

73 Pa. Cons. Stat.§ 201-2(4)(i)-(xxi), in connection with the advertising, marketing, offering for 

sale, and sale of computer security or technical support products and services. 

3. Defendant Niraj Patel neither admits nor denies any of the allegations in the 3. the 
connection Pa. 

Niraj iand 



Case 2:15-cv-05777-GEKP   Document 153   Filed 02/06/17   Page 3 of 16

D. "Tech Support Product or Service" means any plan, program, or software, marketed to 

repair, maintain, or improve a computer's performance or security, including, but not limited to, 

registry cleaners, anti-virus programs, virus and malware removal, and computer or software 

diagnostic services. 

E. "Telemarketing" means any plan, program, or campaign that is conducted to induce the 

purchase of goods or services by use of one or more telephones and which involves a telephone call, 

whether or not covered by the TSR. 

ORDER 

I. BAN ON TECH SUPPORT PRODUCTS OR SERVICES 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant Niraj Patel is permanently restrained and 

enjoined from: 

A. Advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, selling, providing, or assisting or 

providing consulting services to assist others to engage in advertising, marketing, promoting, 

offering for sale, selling, or providing, any Tech Support Product or Service; and 

B. Owning, serving as an officer, director, or manager, or exercising any other form of direct or 

indirect control of any business entity advertising, marketing, promoting, offering for sale, selling, 

providing, or assisting or providing consulting services to assist others to engage in advertising, 

marketing, promoting, offering for sale, selling, or providing, any Tech Support Product or Service. 

II. PROHIBITION AGAINST DECEPTIVE TELEMARKETING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Niraj Patel, his officers, agents, and 

employees, and all other Persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection with the 
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Telemarketing of any product or service, are permanently restrained and enjoined from, or assisting 

others in, directly or 
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E. Any other material fact. 

IV. PROHIBITION AGAINST ASSISTING AND FACILITATING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Niraj Patel, his officers, agents, and 

employees, and all other Persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, whether acting directly or indirectly, in connection with the marketing, 

advertising, promotion, offering for sale, sale, or providing of any products or services , are 

permanently restrained and enjoined from providing substantial assistance or support to any Person 

that they know, or should know, is engaged in tactics to avoid fraud and risk monitoring programs 

established by any financial institution, acquiring bank, or the operators of any payment systems in 

connection with any Merchant account activity, including, but not limited to, balancing or 

distributing sales transaction volume or sales transaction activity among multiple Merchant 

accounts or Merchant billing descriptors; splitting a single sales transaction into multiple smaller 

transactions; or using shell companies to apply for additional Merchant accounts. 

V. MONETARY JUDGMENT 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that: 

A. Judgment in the amount of Three Hundred Twenty-One Thousand Eighteen Dollars and 

Sixty-One Cents ($321,018.61) is entered in favor of Plaintiffs against Defendant Niraj Patel as 

equitable monetary relief. 

B. Defendant Niraj Patel is ordered to pay to Plaintiffs One Hundred Forty-Nine Thousand 
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Nine Hundred Twenty-Six Dollars and Eighty-Five Cents ($149,926.85), which, as he stipulates, 

his undersigned counsel holds in escrow for no purpose other than payment to Plaintiffs. Such 

payment must be made within 7 days of entry of this Order by electronic 
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If a representative of the Plaintiffs decides that direct redress to consumers is wholly or partially 

impracticable or money remains after redress is completed, Plaintiffs may apply any remaining 

money for such other equitable relief (including consumer information remedies) as it determines to 

be reasonably related to the practices alleged in the Amended Complaint. Any money not used for 

such equitable relief is to be deposited to an account or accounts pursuant to instructions provided 

by Plaintiffs State of Connecticut, Office of Attorney General, and Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania, Office of Attorney General. This money may be used for purposes that may 

include, but are not limited to, reimbursement of attorneys' fees and costs of investigation and 

litigation, placement in or application to any consumer protection law enforcement fund, including 

future consumer protection or privacy enforcement, consumer education, litigation, local consumer 

aid or revolving funds, defraying the costs of the inquiry leading to this Order, or for other uses 

permitted by state law, and all at the sole discretion of Plaintiffs State of Connecticut, Office of 

Attorney General, and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of Attorney General. Defendant 

Niraj Patel has no right to challenge any actions Plaintiffs or their representatives may take pursuant 

to this Subsection. 

VI. CUSTOMER INFORMATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Niraj Patel, his officers, agents, and 

employees, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of them, who receive 

actual notice of this Order, are permanently restrained and enjoined from directly or indirectly: 

A. Failing to provide sufficient customer information to enable Plaintiffs to efficiently 

administer consumer redress. If a representative of Plaintiffs requests in writing any information 
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related to redress, Defendant Niraj Patel must provide it, in the form prescribed by Plaintiffs, within 

14 days. 

B. Disclosing, using, or benefitting from customer information, including the name, address, 

telephone number, email address, social security number, other identifying information, or any data 

that enables access to a customer's account (including a credit card, bank account, or other financial 

account), that Spanning Source LLC or iSourceUSA LLC obtained prior to entry of this Order in 

connection with Tech Support Products or Services; and 

C. Failing to destroy such customer information in all forms in their possession, custody, or 

control within 30 days after either entry of a stipulated final order against the last remaining 

defendant or receipt of written direction to do so from a representative of Plaintiffs. 

Provided, however, that customer information need not be disposed of, and may be 

disclosed, to the extent requested by a government agency or required by law, regulation, or court 

order. 

VII. COOPERATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Niraj Patel must fully cooperate with 

representatives 
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VIII. ORDER 
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1. Defendant Niraj Patel must: (a) identify the primary physical, postal, and email address 

and telephone number, as designated points of contact, which representatives of Plaintiffs may use 

to communicate with him; (b) identify all of his businesses by all of their names, telephone 

numbers, and physical, postal, email, and Internet addresses; ( c) describe the activities of each 

business, including the goods and services offered, the means of advertising, marketing, and sales, 

and the involvement of any other defendant (which he must describe if he knows or should know 

due to his own involvement); (d) describe in detail whether and how he is in compliance with each 

Section of this Order; and ( e) provide a copy of each Order Acknowledgment obtained pursuant to 

this Order, unless previously submitted to Plaintiffs. 

2. Additionally, Defendant Niraj Patel must: (a) identify all telephone numbers and all 

physical, postal, email and Internet addresses, including all residences; (b) identify all business 

activities, including any business for which he performs services whether as an employee or 

otherwise and any entity in which he has any ownership interest; and ( c) describe in detail his 

involvement in each such business, including title, role, responsibilities, participation, authority, 

control, and any ownership. 

B. For 10 years after entry of this Order, Defendant Niraj Patel must submit a compliance 

notice, sworn under penalty of perjury, within 14 days of any change in the following: 

1. Defendant Niraj Patel must report any change in: (a) any designated point 
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2. Additionally, Defendant Niraj 
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for 10 years after entry of the Order, and retain each such record for 5 years. Specifically, 

Defendant Niraj Patel for any business that he, individually or collectively with any other 

defendants, is a majority owner or controls directly or indirectly, must create and retain the 

following records: 

A. Accounting recordsng 
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and copying. Plaintiffs are also authorized to obtain discovery, without further leave of court, 

using any of the procedures prescribed by Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 29, 30 (including 

telephonic 
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SO STIPULATED AND AGREED: 

FOR PLAINTIFF: 

M. de Banate, OH Bar# 86039 
Christopher D. Panek, OH Bar# 80016 
Harris A. Senturia, OH Bar# 62480 
Nicole J. Guinto, OH Bar# 89319 
Federal Trade Commission 
1111 Superior A venue East, Suite 200 
Cleveland, Ohio 44114 
Tel: (216) 263-3413 (de Banate) 
Tel: (216) 263-3406 (Panek) 
Tel: (216) 263-3435 (Guinto) 
Tel: (216) 263-3420 (Senturia) 
Fax: (216) 263-3426 
f debanate@ftc.gov 
cpanek@ftc.gov 
hsenturia@ftc.gov 
nguinto@ftc.gov 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
FEDERAL TRADE 

d e b . 5  0  0  1 1 . 5 5 s o U T 
 0 . 0 1 9 9 0 r 5 ( 2 1 6 t 1 4 . 2 1 5 3 . 3 8 9 9  5 3 c n - 3 f ,  ) 3 - 3 4 0 6  



Case 2:15-cv-05777-GEKP   Document 153   Filed 02/06/17   Page 15 of 16

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

BRUCE R. BEEMER 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Nicole R. DiTomo 
Deputy Attorney General 
PA Attorney I.D. No. 315325 
Bureau of Consumer Protection 
15th Floor, Strawberry Square 
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120 
Telephone: (717) 705-6559 
Facsimile: (717) 705-3795 
Email: nditomo@attomeygeneral.gov 

Attorney for Plaintiff 
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 
OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
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FOR DEFENDANT: 

Joshua D. Wolson, Esq., PA ID No. 84998 
Jesse N. Silverman, Esq., PA ID No. 85409 
Dilworth Paxson LLP 
1500 Market Street, Suite 3500E 
Philadelphia, PA 19102 
Tel: (215) 575-7295 
Fax: (215) 575-7200 

N o .  


